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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I want to thank

          3  everyone for coming to this hearing today.  I'm City

          4  Council Member Christine Quinn, the Chair of the

          5  Health Committee.

          6                 Today's hearing is focusing on the

          7  issue of rats and rodents in New York City.  We

          8  actually have kind of three foci for this hearing.

          9  One is an overall update from the Department of

         10  Health on their Rat and Rodent Abatement Program

         11  citywide.  Some of you might remember that the City

         12  Council under the leadership of then Council Member

         13  Bill Perkins and then Speaker of the Council, Peter

         14  Vallone, created a Select Committee on Rodents and

         15  Rodent Abatement, which held a series of Town Hall

         16  meetings across the City.  Held with the support of

         17  the Giuliani Administration and the Daily News, a

         18  Summit on rat- related issues.  And issued a report

         19  summarizing the hearings, summarizing findings, and

         20  making a list of recommendations to the Giuliani

         21  Administration on changes that we believe, had they

         22  been made, would have improved the City's response

         23  and their efforts to control rat and rodent

         24  infestation and problems citywide.

         25  So given the new Administration we wanted to get an
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          2  update on where things were at, in a sense, of Mayor

          3  Bloomberg's perspective and Commissioner Frieden's

          4  perspective on this issue.

          5                 Secondly, this past winter following

          6  the 9/11 tragedy, there were a number of press

          7  reports regarding an increased rodent population, if

          8  you will, in Lower Manhattan, and an increase in

          9  rodent problems.  We also heard reports from tenants

         10  in some lawsuits that were filed from tenants who

         11  did not feel that they could safely re- enter their

         12  homes.  Those tenants raised issues of rat and

         13  rodent problems in their filings with the courts.

         14                 In the 2002 Preliminary Mayor's

         15  Management Report, the Department of Health did

         16  outline a very extensive inspection and

         17  extermination initiative in Lower Manhattan.  I

         18  would believe to deal with those problems that were

         19  raised in Newsday and the Daily News and also in the

         20  court papers and in other problems that they had

         21  heard of.  That was an initiative that focused on

         22  south of Canal Street.

         23                 Thirdly, and regarding the World

         24  Trade Center, we want to get an update from the

         25  Department of Health, did the work that they
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          2  outlined in the Mayor's Management Report take care

          3  of the problem.  And is it, you know, the level of

          4  infestation that some people documented taken care

          5  of, and do we have a plan at hand to prevent as

          6  future work goes on at that site, problems from

          7  getting out of hand again.  Obviously, whenever

          8  construction occurs and the ground, if you will,

          9  gets turned up, rodents and rats come out.  That is

         10  a very scientific, technical, natural, I'm a trained

         11  naturalist as you can see, no, I'm not, as the

         12  ground gets turned up the rats and rodents comes

         13  out, obviously, with the devastation which was far

         14  beyond any construction project.  And then the

         15  following rescue, and recovery, and cleanup work, a

         16  lot of that occurred.  We want to make sure that we

         17  have a plan in hand for rebuilding as we are kind of

         18  at this crossroads.

         19                 Also the third item on the agenda

         20  today is a piece of legislation, which was

         21  introduced by my colleague, Council Member Reed,

         22  which seeks to increase fines as it relates to rat

         23  and rodent issues.  And to really, if you will, give

         24  the Department of Health another tool to help them

         25  in this, their ongoing efforts to combat rat and
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          2  rodent problems citywide.  It's a piece of

          3  legislation that I think is very sound; I'm actually

          4  a sponsor of it, myself.

          5                 So the hearing has those three foci.

          6  And we are going to first, after we hear from the

          7  sponsor of the bill, Council Member Reed, and

          8  briefly from Council Member Gerson, who represents

          9  the World Trade Center area, hear from the

         10  Department of Health. Who will take us through their

         11  citywide initiative, their World Trade Center

         12  initiative and then share with us their thoughts on

         13  the piece of legislation that my colleague has

         14  introduced.

         15                 So we are trying to jam- pack a lot

         16  into this hearing.  I will say that it is 1:30, we

         17  may not finish everything today, because we have a

         18  Stated Meeting at 3:30, unexpectedly, and if we have

         19  to, you know, recess, and stay open and reconvene,

         20  we will, of course, do that.  We are also going to

         21  hear from the Office of Emergency Management today,

         22  as well.

         23                 Council Member Reed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.  I think that you have identified the
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          2  issues very well.  The legislation that I introduced

          3  speaks specifically to some of the problems I think

          4  that were outlined in the Task Force Report of last

          5  year.  And much of what we are finding in working

          6  with the Department of Health and the Department of

          7  Sanitation in trying to get the people who are most

          8  responsible for cleaning areas where the rats are to

          9  address the problem, or to pay a penalty.

         10                 Rats will go where there is food.

         11  Rats really do not care about political boundaries,

         12  or racial jurisdictions.  I was not directed towards

         13  Republican, my colleague, on the minority side.

         14  They even have been known to be seen in Staten

         15  Island.

         16                 But what we are trying to do, is to

         17  get an understanding of what the real problem is, to

         18  educate the public. I happen to think that this new

         19  Department of Health has been working well in

         20  Manhattan Valley, which is the neighborhood that I

         21  represent.  We have an epidemic, and there is a

         22  Special Task Force now looking at it.  But the

         23  fundamental problem is that many of our landlords

         24  and their support staff, meaning superintendents and

         25  porters, et cetera, in buildings are not properly
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          2  putting trash out on the street and not keeping

          3  their property clean.  So it really does not matter

          4  how often you have the Department of Health come

          5  back and rebate and clean the property, if food put

          6  out improperly, waste and trash that attracts rats,

          7  you are going to have them come back again.  It is

          8  that simple.

          9                 So we are trying to give the

         10  Department of Health and the City a new tool to

         11  expand on the fines that many landlords now are just

         12  seeing as the cost of doing business.  They do not

         13  feel like they have to pay the fines.  Hopefully, we

         14  will get their attention by the new scale, and we

         15  will also make it easier for the City soon to take

         16  these people to court, and if necessary, put them in

         17  jail, so that we can address this problem.  I think

         18  that the connection between the fundamental issue of

         19  health, which is the overriding issue in the City.

         20  Rats do not benefit us as a society; there is a

         21  health problem.  We are looking at the issue of new

         22  construction sites and the requirement to abated new

         23  construction sites.  And so I think this is a

         24  proactive hearing across the large- scale issue of

         25  it, and I appreciate the opportunity to have this
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          2  bill introduced today.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

          5  Gerson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

          7  very much, and thank you, Madam Chair, for holding

          8  this hearing and for your leadership on this very

          9  important issue.  Madam Chair, my district, the

         10  Lower Manhattan District faces the invasion of the

         11  rats.  We need to respond, our City needs to respond

         12  strategically and effectively in a coordinated

         13  fashion.  It is, this is a problem, which takes

         14  place throughout Lower Manhattan.  You would not

         15  know that rats do not respond to political

         16  boundaries because it seems as if they are all now

         17  gravitating Downtown from West Side to East Side,

         18  from the Lower East Side to the Lower West Side from

         19  Chinatown to Tribeca to Washington Square South.

         20                 But we know the obvious reasons and

         21  the terrible and tragic and unfortunate reasons.  We

         22  know that construction breeds rats, as you correctly

         23  pointed out, Madam Chair.  And we know that

         24  construction is going to continue and expand

         25  throughout our district.  We have an unprecedented
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          2  rebuilding effort going forth in Lower Manhattan, an

          3  unprecedented construction effort, we therefore,

          4  need to put in place an unprecedented expanded

          5  rodent and rat control effort.

          6                 And this effort, in closing, must be

          7  strategic and multifaceted, it must include all

          8  means of prevention, strategic and safe uses of rat

          9  poisoning, exploration of other, including new

         10  innovative means of rat population control.  We need

         11  to strengthen and expand construction- contracting

         12  requirements to ensure that construction contractors

         13  adhere and follow rat control procedures and

         14  processes.  We need to improve and expand public

         15  sanitation and private carting pickups throughout

         16  Lower Manhattan.  As Council Member Reed pointed

         17  out, rats love food.  And even when the private

         18  sector does the right thing in putting out the trash

         19  properly, we too often Downtown have too much of a

         20  lag time with Sanitation pickup, and that leaves

         21  food and other debris lying around, which again,

         22  attracts the rats.

         23                 So during this unprecedented period,

         24  we need to expand and increase Sanitation pickup

         25  times.  And finally, I congratulate Council Member
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          2  Reed, and also, you, Madam Chair, for the bill,

          3  which you are introducing and sponsoring.  We need

          4  to increase private sector accountability by

          5  increasing these penalties for those who do not do

          6  the right thing.

          7                 So as we go forward, let's make

          8  Manhattan safe for humans.  Let's make Lower

          9  Manhattan open for business and for residents, but

         10  closed to the four- legged rats, which are invading

         11  our area.

         12                 I thank you, and as I mentioned to

         13  you earlier, because of the unscheduled stated

         14  Council meeting, I needed to rearrange my schedule,

         15  and I will leave to leave before the hearing is

         16  completed, a recess.  But I will certainly follow-

         17  up and look forward to working with you, as well as

         18  with the Administration to deal with this problem.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         21  wanted to note that we have been joined by many

         22  members of the Committee.  People may be jumping in

         23  and out, myself included, because State and Federal

         24  Legislation is meeting at the same time, and the

         25  3:30 Council meeting relates to Home Rule Messages,
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          2  which the State and Federal Legislation Committee,

          3  of which I am a member, has to vote on first.

          4                 But we have been joined by a member

          5  of the Committee from Queens, Council Member Helen

          6  Sears; Council Members Al Vann and Yvette Clarke

          7  both from Brooklyn and both members of the

          8  Committee; Council Member Gerson, who we heard from;

          9  the Minority Leader of the City Council from Staten

         10  Island, James Oddo, who is a member of the

         11  Committee; Council Member Phil Reed, the sponsor of

         12  the legislation we are hearing today, who is also a

         13  member of the Committee; and from Manhattan, I have

         14  also been joined by Council Member, the Deputy

         15  Majority Leader, Bill Perkins, who was the Chair of

         16  the prior Council's Select Committee on Pest

         17  Control.

         18                 And I just want to say that we are

         19  going to be hearing from the Department of Health

         20  today.  And in the audience, we are not going to be

         21  hearing from them though, is the Office of Emergency

         22  Management, the New York City Housing Authority, the

         23  Department of Parks and Recreation, and the

         24  Department of Sanitation.  So if there are questions

         25  specific to them, we obviously can get the
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          2  information from there.  And I appreciate the

          3  Administration sending so many agencies.  I think

          4  it, obviously, speaks to an effort to having

          5  increase coordination between agencies citywide and

          6  in Lower Manhattan.

          7                 So with that I am going to call on

          8  our first witness, James Gibson, Assistant

          9  Commissioner for Veterinary and Pest Control

         10  Services for the New York City Department of Health.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Good

         12  afternoon.  My name is James Gibson, and I am

         13  Assistant Commissioner for Veterinary and Pest

         14  Control Services for the New York City Department of

         15  Health.  I would like to thank the City Council

         16  Committee on Health for this opportunity to testify

         17  on the issue of rodent control in New York City and

         18  on Intro. No. 90.

         19                 Rodent control, as you know, is a

         20  major concern for most large cities, and is

         21  especially challenging in New York City, which is by

         22  far the nation's most populous city and - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Commissioner

         24  Gibson, I'm sorry, could you speak up a little.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,
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          2  I will bring this a little closer, sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, thank you.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON: - -

          5  and its most densely populated large municipality.

          6  While there Health Department is responsible for

          7  enforcing the City's Health Code with regard to

          8  rodent control, every City agency, every business,

          9  and every resident has an important role other play

         10  in the City's war on rats.

         11                 Since I last testified before this

         12  Committee a little more than a year and a half ago,

         13  the Department has effected continuing productivity

         14  increase in its rodent control activities. So that

         15  we are, in essence, doing significantly more with

         16  the same and the various management indicators by

         17  which we measure rodent control reflect this

         18  progress.  At the same time, our ongoing work

         19  continues within and across government and with all

         20  interested parties to find and implement ways to

         21  further improve rodent control policies and

         22  operations.  So, while I am generally reporting good

         23  news, the Department is committed to continuing

         24  improvements that will result in even better news.

         25                 Let me briefly summarize the history,
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          2  mission and operations of the Pest Control Services

          3  program.  Because rodents historically have spread

          4  disease, caused economic damage through food

          5  contamination and spoilage and actual damage to

          6  buildings and infrastructure, and decreased quality

          7  of life, the City's Health Code prohibits rodent

          8  infestations and conditions conducive to such

          9  infestations.  It also authorizes the Department of

         10  Health to compel property owners to eliminate such

         11  conditions.  In the mid July 1960s, the Board of

         12  Health created Pest Control Services in response to

         13  a citywide rodent presence that it deemed a public

         14  health nuisance.  In more recent times, the

         15  program's annual budget has more than doubled in the

         16  last 10 years, to approximately $13.5 million this

         17  year, its current and highest level, and this level

         18  is being maintained for the coming fiscal year in

         19  the face of an approximately $5 billion budgetary

         20  shortfall.

         21                 The Office of Pest Control Services

         22  is responsible for enforcing Health Code regulations

         23  to protect the public from rodent- borne disease and

         24  improve quality of life.  These enforcement

         25  activities include inspections, exterminations, and
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          2  removal of garbage and debris from properties with

          3  unremediated violations.  Pest Control Services

          4  collaborates with other governmental agencies to

          5  monitor and control rodent infestation, identify

          6  high- risk areas, and reduce rodent numbers through

          7  source reduction, stoppage, and judicious

          8  applications of rodenticides.

          9                 In the late 1990s, Pest Control

         10  Services launched an initiative whereby some 60

         11  problem areas, comprising 15 city blocks, received

         12  comprehensive rodent control service including

         13  thorough inspection sweeps closely allied with

         14  enforcement and remediation.  We have modified that

         15  successful effort and have made permanent what we

         16  term Pest Control's geographic approach, whereby

         17  clusters of complaints or observations by our field

         18  staff trigger community- wide assessments, and then

         19  intervention as needed. Geographic intervention

         20  affords us greater flexibility in problem areas, and

         21  is more proactive and effective than based solely on

         22  addressing individuals complaints as they arise.

         23                 Core Pest Control activities include

         24  the following:

         25                 Inspections of property, upon either
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          2  complaint or identification by Pest Control as

          3  potentially rodent- infested.  If initial inspection

          4  detects violations, the owner is identified via tax

          5  databases and issued a Commissioner's Order

          6  requiring remediation within five days.  If a

          7  follow- up compliance inspection, about 14 days

          8  later, finds any uncorrected violation, the owner is

          9  issued a notice of violation, which is adjudicated

         10  in a civil proceeding.  Extermination, or cleanup,

         11  or both, for which the owner will be billed, are

         12  scheduled as appropriate.  In case of a rodent bite,

         13  the site inspection is scheduled within 24 hours and

         14  remediation is immediate.  Sites owned by government

         15  agencies, which constitute about five percent of our

         16  inspections, are also inspected; the owning agency

         17  is notified of the inspection findings and required

         18  to remove violations from those properties.

         19                 Exterminations are conducted on

         20  private property and upon public property where

         21  there is an immediate public health threat.  Private

         22  owners are first given the opportunity to remediate

         23  before the Department takes this important

         24  enforcement action, which is scheduled only after a

         25  Commissioner's Order in not obeyed; and the owner is
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          2  billed.  The Department takes full precautions and

          3  follows all appropriate regulations in applying

          4  rodenticides.

          5                 Cleanups and stoppage on private

          6  property, to eliminate rodent- conducive conditions,

          7  are likewise conducted only after a failed

          8  compliance inspection and issuance of a Notice of

          9  Violation.  The costs of these services, which can

         10  be substantial, are billed to the owner.

         11                 Outreach and education are an

         12  important element in Pest Control's ongoing efforts.

         13    Our recent Help NYC Send Rats Packing media

         14  campaigning, featured engaging art and carefully

         15  honed messages in posters and brochures were

         16  translated into half a dozen languages.  We also

         17  reach out into communities through the Agency's

         18  Speaker's Bureau, and have developed the

         19  Department's Internet web site into a useful

         20  outreach tool.

         21                 Several other important aspects of

         22  our program, in particular, deserve mention:

         23                 The Mayor's Rodent Control Task Force

         24  brings some 17 City agencies together on a regular

         25  basis, under one umbrella, and under the direction
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          2  of the Office of Emergency Management to address

          3  infestations that require a coordinated approach,

          4  either because of their size or because they involve

          5  City controlled property.  The Task Force, using a

          6  problem- solving approach that emphasizes speedy

          7  resolution of difficult situations over narrow

          8  interpretations of jurisdictions, continues to cut

          9  through barriers that formerly isolated governmental

         10  entities from one another as it addresses problem

         11  areas identified by the Department of Health.

         12                 An initiative about which we are

         13  particularly excited and hopeful combines advanced

         14  technology, intergovernmental and interagency

         15  collaboration, community activism, and modern

         16  integrated pest management concepts to

         17  simultaneously address particularly difficult rodent

         18  infestation conditions and reduce asthma triggers.

         19  In September 2001, the Department was awarded a

         20  $250,000 grant from the Centers for Disease Control

         21  and Prevention for a pilot comprehensive integrated

         22  pest management project in a 48- block portion of

         23  Bushwick, Brooklyn that has long evidenced

         24  substantial rodent infestations.  A cadre of

         25  community- based organization and Health Department
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          2  staff have been trained, in depth, in rodent

          3  stoppage and garbage containerization methodology,

          4  and are now, in turn, training property owners and

          5  residents in integrated pest management techniques.

          6                 In conjunction with this effort, all

          7  properties within the project area have been

          8  inspected, with owners in violation given the choice

          9  of participating in training and temporarily putting

         10  off follow- up inspections that may result in

         11  summonses, fines, and subsequent enforcement

         12  actions.  The project action plan includes

         13  distribution of equal numbers of both mental and

         14  plastic trash containers in defined areas to measure

         15  their respective impact on rodent control, and

         16  better utilization of Geographic Information System,

         17  or GIS technology, as an important means of

         18  improving and speeding up our data management and

         19  analysis.  Toward that end, in collaboration with

         20  the Department of Information Technology and

         21  Telecommunications, the Department of Health is

         22  developing a pilot GIS program within the project

         23  with the intention of developing parallel GIS data

         24  management operations in all of its regional

         25  offices.
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          2                 Our progress in this past year came

          3  even as the events of September 11th required Pest

          4  Control to step up and respond.  In the immediate

          5  aftermath of the attack, to safeguard against rodent

          6  infestation, Pest Control Service inspected more

          7  than 1,100 food service establishments south of

          8  Canal Street.  We worked 24/7 to remove spoiled

          9  foods from 75 establishments, which included over

         10  300 tons of spoiled food.  And put in place, near

         11  the disaster site, more than 1,000 bait stations,

         12  availing ourselves to GIS capabilities our staff had

         13  just developed in preparation for the pilot GIS

         14  program, I related to you a moment ago.  And putting

         15  this modern management approach into practice in all

         16  facets of this effort.

         17                 Let me briefly summarize what some of

         18  the key management indicators are telling us about

         19  our program and operations:

         20                 The number of inspections Pest

         21  Control staff conducted in 2001 rose by 20 percent

         22  over the year 2000; as did the number of

         23  exterminations, by 60 percent.  Both of these

         24  activities rose to record levels - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Commissioner, can
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          2  I, for one second?  These stats that you are giving

          3  us now, are these for work that was done south

          4  Canal, or these are citywide?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  These

          6  are overall, citywide.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Both

          9  of these activities rose to record levels even as

         10  the numbers of complaints fell by over 18 percent in

         11  the same period.

         12                 Much of this success is due to

         13  productivity gains in all service categories, with

         14  inspector productivity up 35 percent from the start

         15  of 2000 to the end of 2001, exterminator

         16  productivity up 80 percent from October 2000 through

         17  2001, and cleanup productivity up 5 percent in a

         18  comparable period.

         19                 We also slashed our correspondence

         20  response time, from 47 days in mid- 2000 to just

         21  four days by the end of 2000, and reduced the volume

         22  of overdue correspondence from 358 items to 0.

         23                 These gains notwithstanding, we are

         24  still working to modernize and improve our

         25  operations.  We are in the beginning stages of a
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          2  comprehensive data management upgrading that will

          3  eliminate paper transfer, enable electronic tracking

          4  of program activities and greatly improve our

          5  response capability.  We are revamping our

          6  quantitative data collection processes as a part of

          7  this effort.

          8                 Closely related, we are planning even

          9  more improvements in the quality control measures of

         10  our program, such as implementing semi- annual

         11  internal audits of regional offices' activities and

         12  weekly quality assurance field reports.  This

         13  information could not be developed until the advent

         14  of a modern data management technology in the Pest

         15  Control program; now it can. We are also exploring

         16  ways of further improving efficiency, including

         17  relocation resources to under- served areas.  And we

         18  are conducting integrated, pilot integrated pest

         19  management programs that address the underlying

         20  conditions conducive to rodent infestations, namely,

         21  the elimination of food sources and breeding

         22  habitats, over the more conventional approach that

         23  relies heavily upon toxic pesticides.

         24                 In conjunction with these efforts, we

         25  are aggressively educating communities on how they
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          2  can reduce rodent populations through improved food

          3  storage and improved garbage handling practices.

          4                 As I stated at the onset, the

          5  Department of Health is the primary enforcement

          6  agency within the multi- agency effort coordinated

          7  by the Mayor's Rodent Task Force.  I would like to

          8  very briefly summarize recent activities conducted

          9  by some of our sister agencies that play key roles

         10  in rodent control:

         11                 The Department of Sanitation

         12  continued lot cleaning, its primary rodent control

         13  activity, with an emphasis on fast tracking lots in

         14  problem areas identified by the Task Force, in

         15  addition to performing pivotal work required by the

         16  World Trade Center emergency.  In the first 11

         17  months of Fiscal Year 2002, DOS cleaned over 5,551

         18  lots; 4,267 of which were city- owned lots and 1,284

         19  privately- owned.  In the wake of 9/11, DOS removed

         20  more than 300 tons of decaying food waste from the

         21  Trade Center area, and performed 24/7 food waste

         22  collection for emergency personnel at churches,

         23  command centers and mobile sites.  The Department of

         24  Housing Preservation and Development regularly

         25  inspects and exterminates the properties under its
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          2  purview, depending on the class of property.  Vacant

          3  lot are inspected at least every six weeks with

          4  referrals for rubbish and weed removal and

          5  exterminations or promulgated as necessary.

          6  Occupied residences with three or more units are

          7  exterminated monthly; one- to two family units are

          8  serviced on a complaint basis.  Vacant residences

          9  are inspected at least one a month, with exterior

         10  baiting ordered as necessary.  HPD will undertake

         11  intensive baiting from 125th Street to 152nd Street

         12  between Riverside Drive and Amsterdam Avenue, co-

         13  jointly with the Departments of Health, Sanitation,

         14  Parks and Environmental Protection and Community

         15  Board No. 9, later this week.

         16                 The Department of Parks utilizes

         17  Integrated Pest Management methodology emphasizing

         18  prevention and exclusion of rodents in conjunction

         19  with safe, effective pesticide placement after

         20  careful monitoring.  Prevention includes frequent

         21  garbage pick- ups, as often as twice daily, in known

         22  hot spots, experimental use of closed containers and

         23  reinforced liners to thwarted incursions and pruning

         24  of overgrown areas to deny rodents' harborage.  Rat

         25  complaints are encouraged through wide posting of
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          2  signs with an 800 number, and Borough crews bait

          3  complaint areas within 48 hours.

          4                 In sum, the Health Department's

          5  Office of Pest Control Services has squarely

          6  accepted the Mayoral challenge to do more, and

          7  continues along an ongoing revitalization process

          8  characterized primarily by introduction of increased

          9  productivity and efficiencies.  At the same time, we

         10  are keenly are that more can be done in every area

         11  of this oversight hearing seeks to address,

         12  prevention, abatement and enforcement, and we look

         13  forward to working with the City Council to find

         14  ways to further improve rodent control.

         15                 The Department has reviewed Intro.

         16  No. 90, and we certainly support the concept that

         17  fines for violations of the Health Code relating to

         18  rodent control should be adequate.  As you may know,

         19  the Health Code provides for a range of fines from

         20  $100 to $2,000 for violations.  We do have some

         21  technical suggestions that we believe will make the

         22  bill more effective and consistent with the intent

         23  of the sponsor and with Health Code provisions.  We

         24  look forward to working with he bill's sponsor and

         25  with the Committee to achieve this goal.
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          2                 I would like to thank, again, the

          3  Committee on Health for this opportunity to address

          4  this important issue, and I would be happy to take

          5  questions at this time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Before we start

          7  with questions, if you could take us through your

          8  chart, your map and your dots, and tell us what they

          9  represent?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Okay,

         11  basically, this is a graphic of the area in and

         12  around the World Trade Center that we conducted our

         13  inspections and exterminations and other activities.

         14    Each of the dots represent an application, like

         15  baiting, exterminations like that, we conducted.

         16  Basically, they're multiple dots underneath these

         17  dots.  So these dots that you see visually depicted

         18  are not the full scale of the applications that we

         19  conducted.

         20                 There are over 1,000 sites, total

         21  bait sites, that we have applied rodenticide.  That

         22  represents over 2,000 applications of rodenticides

         23  since the beginning of this, the tragedy until the

         24  last debris was removed from the site.  So basically

         25  we have done an exhaustive amount of effort on the
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          2  World Trade Center.

          3                 We recognize from the onset that this

          4  disaster potentially would create a rodent problem,

          5  if we did not act very aggressively, which we did.

          6  From the very onset, as you indicated, we conducted

          7  inspections from Canal Street on down.  We focused

          8  our efforts in these three zones, zones 1, 2, and 5,

          9  which encompassed the World Trade Center area and

         10  the Financial District.  We were very, very

         11  aggressive, and certainly, took in any kind of

         12  reports that we had regarding isolated rodent

         13  infestations.  There were no widespread rodent

         14  infestations as a result of our activities.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The application

         16  sites, those were ones that you chose, because your

         17  Department or a Department thought they made sense?

         18  Or they are ones that were in response to calls that

         19  you got, issues raised in the press, the dozens of

         20  lawsuits, the Housing Court lawsuits that people

         21  filed?  Or what made you chose those spots?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  These

         23  were based on inspections.  We have inspectors go to

         24  these sites; we basically may do determinations

         25  about where there were signs of rodent infestations.
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          2    And again, we did that proactively, and we applied

          3  rodenticide where it was needed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So all of those

          5  applications sites represent locations where the

          6  Department identified a problem and wanted to get to

          7  the problem before it got further out of hand.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  That

          9  is correct. One example, in World Trade Center 7,

         10  there was a rodent problem there.  We actually went

         11  into World Trade Center and put several hundred-

         12  bait stations in the World Trade Center, at 7,

         13  itself.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And during what

         15  period of time?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  This

         17  was shortly after the disaster happened, within

         18  weeks after the disaster, before the demolition

         19  occurred.  We actually had a number of folks go down

         20  there, they found spoiled food that was not able to

         21  be removed, and we actually placed bait stations

         22  inside World Trade Center 7.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you, there

         24  was a question from my colleague, what is a bait

         25  station?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  A

          3  bait station is basically a plastic box, whereby you

          4  put bait in.  And it basically is a protective

          5  environment, whereby dogs and small children cannot

          6  get to it.  Basically, it is sort of an enclosed

          7  environment, whereby rats can get it, but folks

          8  cannot.  They are sealed so that folks cannot get

          9  into them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  In a less

         11  politically correct world, we might call it a trap.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         13  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But we would not

         15  do that. Right, it's like a roach motel, a rat

         16  motel, if you will.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         18  Exactly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  What does an

         20  inspector have to see at a location for it to then

         21  be appropriate to become an applications site, what

         22  are the pieces of evidence, what do they have to

         23  witness?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  There

         25  are all sorts of things that are very easy to
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          2  determine.  For instance, there is, there could be

          3  burrows, for instance, or there could be rodent

          4  droppings.  There could be marks that the rats, if

          5  they have a path that they use, they actually leave

          6  a mark.  There are all sorts of signs that the

          7  inspectors look for, they are trained to look for

          8  these things, and they can be very subtle that most

          9  people may not notice.  But they are very good at

         10  finding the signs that are associated with rodent

         11  infestations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And these

         13  applications sites are all on streets or quasi-

         14  public spaces?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         16  Right.  That is one of the reasons that we use the

         17  bait stations.  Again, we want to make sure that

         18  folks do not inadvertently get poisoned.  So we put

         19  them in these enclosed environments, they are fixed

         20  to a location, they are locked so that they are not

         21  easily accessible to anyone, and basically we put

         22  them on the street.  We also bait burrows, if there

         23  are cracks and crevices in infrastructure, we also

         24  place them there as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  How has the
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          2  Department addressed the issues in Housing that have

          3  been raised?  As I referenced, there was, according

          4  to press reports, about a dozen, at least at the

          5  time of that particular article, a dozen cases filed

          6  in Housing Court of tenants who had issues feeling

          7  that their homes, for a number of reasons post-

          8  9/11, were not fit for them to return to. And in

          9  those dozen cases, rodent infestation was raised in

         10  the papers by the tenants and their lawyers.  How

         11  has the Department addressed that issue of rodent

         12  infestation in private housing? Because none of

         13  those applications sites are in private housing,

         14  right?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         16  Right, no, no.  I'm not familiar with those reports

         17  that you mentioned specifically. But generally

         18  speaking, if we get reports of rodent infestations

         19  in private housing, we would do an inspection.  If

         20  it was a complaint filed by that property owner, we

         21  would actually go to their homes; we provide them

         22  with guidance on what they need to do to remove the

         23  rodent infestation.

         24                 Obviously, if it is a community- wide

         25  problem, then we would go through the entire
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          2  community, do inspections, do exterminations, as

          3  needed.  But again, we would give people proper

          4  notice, as indicated in my testimony, we basically

          5  do an initial inspections, we issue Commissioner's

          6  Order requiring property owners to bait any kind of

          7  conditions that might be conducive to rodent

          8  infestations on their property.  We give them up to

          9  14 days to do that, and then we go back and re-

         10  inspect  If those violations have not been removed,

         11  and then we will take action, we will do

         12  extermination, remove the source of the infestation,

         13  and bill that owner for those violations.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So in those

         15  Housing cases, they did not come to the attention of

         16  the Department?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No,

         18  they did not come to my attention, no.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So if we were to,

         20  if the Council was to reach out to those tenants

         21  and/or their lawyer, and there was still a problem,

         22  you would be willing to sit down with them and to

         23  try to address them.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         25  Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So your

          3  jurisdiction cannot, you could not go into private

          4  housing unless there was a request from the owner or

          5  a resident?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  We

          7  would have to get access, correct.  We are in many

          8  instances; we may have to get access warrants as

          9  well.  If there is a - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I'm sorry, what?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         12  Access warrants.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Oh.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  We

         15  have to go through the court system, which is a very

         16  arduous process, but if there is a serious problem,

         17  then we do go that route to get access to properties

         18  for folks that do not cooperate with our Health

         19  Orders.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let me just ask

         21  two other questions, and then I know my colleagues

         22  have a number of questions, and we may end up doing

         23  rounds one, you know, World Trade Center, one on the

         24  billing, it might jump around a little.

         25                 The numbers that you had in your
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          2  testimony on page 4, both the numbers in the second

          3  paragraph particular to 9/11. How do those compare

          4  to last year?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Okay,

          6  I have a different for it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Oh, I'm sorry.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Well,

          9  obviously, the intensity within the short period of

         10  time is much greater.  We saw a need and we saw a

         11  need for aggressive action to make sure that there

         12  was no rodent infestation in this area.  With the

         13  destruction in that area, we recognized that the

         14  populations that were resident in that area, did

         15  have the potential because there was much more food

         16  available, the infrastructure was disrupted, there

         17  certainly was much more potential for the rodent

         18  population to explode.  And we took a very

         19  aggressive action to make sure that that did not

         20  happen.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The citywide

         22  numbers, how do they, one, how do they compare to

         23  last year; and, two, do you have any breakout of

         24  those particular to Lower Manhattan, Canal Street

         25  South?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  I do

          3  not have a breakout, we could certainly get that to

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  But

          7  with regards to our numbers this year, as I

          8  indicated, our productivity and numbers have

          9  increased dramatically.  I will give you an example,

         10  in 2001, for total exterminations that we preformed,

         11  we performed approximately 64,000, in all of 2000,

         12  we did 51,000.  As of April of this year, we have

         13  already broken our record, which was the previous

         14  year's record, and we had two more months, because I

         15  have April's numbers here.  So basically, we are

         16  going to break all the records for the entire time

         17  we have been monitoring rodent control

         18  exterminations.

         19                 The same can be said for inspections,

         20  total inspections, this year we have already broken

         21  our all time record, which 1998 for inspections, and

         22  we still have two months to go.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And how are the

         24  calls to the hotline, are those numbers up?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No,
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          2  there is a 20 percent decrease in the number of

          3  complaints.  Now there could be a lot of reasons for

          4  that, one of which was 9/11 there was some

          5  disruptions in communications, but overall our

          6  numbers are down 20 percent this year.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  One of the

          8  concerns that was raised by, not folks Downtown, but

          9  by Mothers on the Move in the Bronx, was that when

         10  they would call the hotline and our staff

         11  experienced this, that the hotline was not clear

         12  enough.  And the automated message there, although,

         13  some of the hotlines are very clear, you know, push

         14  4 for AIDS Hotline, push 5 for X Hotline, that there

         15  isn't push 9 for Rat Hotline or Rodent Hotline, that

         16  you have to push the number for the Central Hotline

         17  number.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         19  Right, right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Our staff was

         21  actually only able to figure it out because they

         22  stayed on to talk to the operator and the operator

         23  said that that was the right number.

         24                 But secondly, when they pushed the

         25  Central Complaint number and then got directed to
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          2  the hotline, there wasn't a Spanish- speaking staff

          3  member who could assist them.

          4                 So I'm particularly concerned to kind

          5  of, I'm concerned about the, obviously, the Spanish-

          6  speaking issue, but particularly concerned as it

          7  relates to September 11th, whether or not there are

          8  any Chinese- speakers who staff that phone line?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         10   - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I would like

         12  to, obviously, also follow- up on trying to change

         13  the automated message in a way that is more user-

         14  friendly.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  There

         16  are no full time staff members that staff the line.

         17  But we do have a contract with translating services.

         18    Basically, if there is someone who does need those

         19  services, that we actually page, get in touch with

         20  some operators that specialize in that language, and

         21  then we are able to offer those translations.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But the tape is

         23  only in English, so it is probably unlikely that

         24  they would get to that point.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No, I
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          2  think those are good suggestions, and you are

          3  absolutely right, and I will certainly talk to the

          4  folks who run the call center.  You know, I agree

          5  with you, many people do not know that Central

          6  Complaints is really the number the call for rodent

          7  complaints, and there should be specifically

          8  something to report rodent complaints, and I agree

          9  with you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And maybe if we

         11  could also sit down with, perhaps, Alan Gerson,

         12  whomever to address this Chinatown issue, because on

         13  the map there aren't really a lot, there do not

         14  appear to be any applications sites in Chinatown.

         15  And, you know, that is an area that, obviously, was

         16  very impacted, and I don't know whether this issue

         17  of language, accessibility on the hotline has

         18  perhaps contributed to that area not maybe getting

         19  the level of attention that it needed.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         21  let me just point out that this map represents what

         22  we consider to be the World Trade Center Initiative.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Now

         25  outside of this area, there certainly were
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          2  exterminations that were conducted as part of our

          3  routine operations.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, but I'm

          5  just commenting on the part of Chinatown that is in

          6  your World Trade Center Initiative is noticeably

          7  absent of application sites.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, thank you.

         10  Council Member Reed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.  I think we are trying to spend some

         13  time really understanding what the issue is.  And

         14  it's always interesting because we watch the media

         15  sort of scurry around.  I wouldn't want to make a

         16  characterization, scurrying, but one place another,

         17  and sometimes you have got to stay focused on

         18  something long enough to accomplish the goal.  And I

         19  think the Administration is doing a good job, I

         20  think, trying to understand this and respond to what

         21  Council Member Perkins, perhaps, had initiated from

         22  the Council's position.

         23                 How long have you been at the

         24  position that you are at now, Commissioner?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  I
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          2  started May of 2000, so a little over two years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So you could,

          4  you impress me as rather a modest man, but you could

          5  probably take responsibility for some of these vast

          6  improvements here in these numbers.  I think you

          7  ought to be recognized for that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I would like

          9  to very much echo those comments.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And the

         13  responsiveness to that.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Thank

         15  you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So I want to

         17  thank you for that.

         18                 You talked, in your testimony,

         19  briefly, about some of the health issues related to

         20  rat infestations.  Could you elaborate on that so

         21  people understand what exactly we are talking about

         22  when we say this is a health problem?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Well

         24  luckily in New York City we don't have a whole lot

         25  of rodent- borne disease.  There had been isolated
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          2  cases of a disease.  However, we have been fortunate

          3  that mostly in New York City, it is a quality- of-

          4  life. Obviously, it is something that we want to

          5  ensure that that continues to be the case.  The

          6  potential always exists when there is a large

          7  infestation for transmission of rodent- borne

          8  disease.

          9                 Again, in New York City that has not

         10  been the case. There had been, one of the things

         11  that we are doing to be proactive is we just

         12  recently enacted, the Board of Health enacted some,

         13  a Health Code change that requires to certain

         14  diseases, such as leptospirosis, to be reported in

         15  animals and that basically, and there are a number

         16  of other diseases, as well.  And one of the

         17  advantages of that, particularly in light of what

         18  happened with Anthrax, is that often times animals

         19  are sentinels for diseases that humans can come down

         20  with.  So basically, that Health Code change is

         21  important to us to get some advance notice in the

         22  event that there might be some bio- terrorism event.

         23    But that is one thing that we have recently

         24  enacted, that went into effect in February of this

         25  year.
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          2                 Since then, we have gotten two

          3  reported cases of leptospirosis in dogs.  Now we

          4  don't have a whole lot to compare that with in early

          5  years, because it was not required to be reported.

          6  But there certainly are not a large number of cases

          7  of rodent- borne diseases in humans that we are

          8  aware of.  There was one case in humans of

          9  leptospirosis this year, there was one case last

         10  year, there was one case in 1999, and there were a

         11  few cases, I think one case a few years before that

         12  and so forth.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Any others?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No.

         15  Well, I mean, there were rickettsialpox,

         16  rickettsialpox is associated with - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I don't even

         18  think Perkins can say that word, he said the other

         19  one, but go ahead.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  No, I can.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Oh, okay.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No,

         23  there certainly are things, and there are certain

         24  diseases, such as food poisoning and Salmonella

         25  poisoning that is often known to be associated with
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          2  rodents, but it is very hard to focus, to pinpoint

          3  that.  Because it is a physical transmission of the

          4  disease, basically, the rodents physically get onto

          5  food and then basically they transmit Salmonella

          6  that way.  But it is really hard to pinpoint whether

          7  or not that was actually caused by rodents.  So

          8  there are other rodent- borne diseases that could

          9  attributable to rodents, but it's hard to know.  But

         10  we do not believe there is a serious epidemic or

         11  increase on rodent- borne disease in New York City.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What you are

         13  saying is that the quality- of- life issue is

         14  significant enough that we expending this kind of

         15  money and effort.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Well,

         17  again, the focus is on preventing human disease that

         18  is our focus.  And we want to make sure the rodent

         19  populations are low and remain low so that there is

         20  no potential for transmission of rodent- borne

         21  disease.  That is when there is a large population,

         22  that is when the potential increases significantly

         23  for rodent- borne disease.

         24                 That being said, it is also important

         25  to make sure that quality- of- life for all the
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          2  citizens of New York is high, and one of the ways we

          3  can do that is reduce the rodent population.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What is it that

          5  you are doing about, you said the public awareness

          6  campaign, and I know you were kind enough the other

          7  day at a public meeting that I participated in, to

          8  bring us, I think, some terrific flyers.  And, for

          9  instance, I wasn't aware, as much as I have a

         10  problem with pigeons and people that feed pigeons,

         11  you had pointed out, and perhaps you want to, would

         12  you be kind enough to elaborate on that?

         13                 So two questions, what is the issue

         14  related to pigeons and rats, but also, what are we

         15  doing about public service announcements?  I'm not

         16  sure I'm seeing posters and that happening. I know

         17  the City had been, I thought it done a terrific job

         18  around asthma and the awareness campaign around

         19  that, and I think your accomplishments have been

         20  great.

         21                 So that is two questions, what are we

         22  doing to really get that out, the distribution of

         23  these posters, are there PSAs, and also, speak to

         24  the issue of pigeons for me?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes.
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          2  What we are doing with regards to the overall

          3  campaign, as you indicated, we had developed, a

          4  couple of years ago, an extensive campaign.  There

          5  were television spots, animated cartoons, we had

          6  posters in the subways, we had them on buses, we had

          7  them on the bus stops.  We developed flyers, and we

          8  still have an extensive supply of those and we do

          9  distribute those out at community members.

         10                 Unfortunately, the budget is such

         11  that we are not, we really do not have the ability

         12  to do it on the television, but we do have the

         13  printed copies, whereby we distribute to community

         14  boards, anywhere, basically, anyone who is willing

         15  to do this, we do - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What do some of

         17  the posters say, as a colleague of mine is asking?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  One

         19  poster, the theme is, "You Feed Them, You Breed

         20  Them."   And basically we want to make sure the

         21  message is that everyone has really the power to

         22  control this in many respects.  Basically, they have

         23  to containerize their trash, make sure the rats do

         24  not have a food source.

         25                 The one with regard to pigeons, it
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          2  reads, "Feed a Pigeon, Breed a Rat."  And the pigeon

          3  problem there are many, many instances whereby folks

          4  go to the eighth degree to feed pigeons, and it's

          5  certainly well beyond what the pigeons can eat.  And

          6  the pigeon population is exploding, creating

          7  problems from a nuisance perspective.  But also

          8  whatever the pigeons don't eat, obviously, the rats

          9  do.  And so not only do we have an explosion in the

         10  pigeon population in certain areas of the City, but

         11  we have also, simultaneously, an explosion in the

         12  rodent population in those areas as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So are we

         14  trying to address that issue of public information?

         15  I mean I know I have a bill here, and I don't want

         16  to seem like the grinch or whatever the name of that

         17  guy is, but trying to penalize everybody.  But are

         18  we looking at this enforcement of the prohibition to

         19  feeding birds and pigeons and squirrels in the park

         20  as an effort to say, listen, guys this isn't cute,

         21  because this is, in fact, bringing us rats.  I mean,

         22  have we done any enforcement, as do you have some

         23  statistics perhaps that you could share?

         24                 You said you are working with the

         25  Parks Department, is that part of the collaborative
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          2  effort?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

          4  absolutely.  We do have some ongoing enforcement

          5  actions, particularly against those folks that have

          6  egregious infractions.  As I mentioned to you when

          7  we met, we have conducted sting operations very

          8  early in the morning, 6:00 a.m.  Many of these

          9  people have patterns whereby they feed pigeons,

         10  hundreds and hundreds of pounds of feed at a time.

         11  We actually have had the Police involved, we have

         12  had Parks involved, we have had Sanitation involved,

         13  and of course, our Health folks involved, and we

         14  have actually conducted stings.  We have had

         15  multiple violations issued against folks; we have

         16  had Commissioner's Orders issued.  Unfortunately,

         17  many of these folks do not get the message and they

         18  continue to do this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I think you are

         20  right, I think, in fact, in many communities people

         21  do not see the correlation between the two.  And so

         22  there is a tolerance within the community for people

         23  who feed pigeons.  But I think if they were to

         24  understand between just the indiscriminate placement

         25  of trash, because, you know, we are looking at
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          2  something punitive, perhaps, it's the way the

          3  landlords see it, but also there is a collective

          4  sort of problem with how we dispose of trash.

          5                 And I think, then the other piece in

          6  terms of the feeding the pigeons, et cetera, et

          7  cetera, people do not make that correlation.  I

          8  think if they did, because everybody, I think, as

          9  colleagues will tell you, you cannot walk down the

         10  street without people pointing that out.  But you

         11  said it, and why don't you stop this guy from

         12  feeding the pigeons?  Oh, well, it's sort of nice to

         13  watch that.  So certainly I think it may be helpful,

         14  if we sort of made people aware of that.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         16  Absolutely. Education, as I mentioned in my

         17  testimony, is an important component of what we do.

         18  We want to make sure that everyone recognizes that

         19  they have a responsibility to solve this problem.

         20  The City cannot solve the problem on its own.  We

         21  need everyone's help, we need the residences, we

         22  need the businesses, we need everyone to collaborate

         23  on this.

         24                 And absolutely, there is no question

         25  about it, those- -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  The last - -

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          4  Sorry, go ahead.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  The last thing,

          6  because I want to give my colleagues time, and I

          7  know we are headed towards a full Stated Council

          8  Meeting.  Just one second.  And as I said, I have

          9  all the time in the world, and I forgot my question.

         10                 Oh, one of the things that I know we

         11  had talked with you about, the problem of taking the

         12  landlords to court and actually getting the process

         13  through court, getting them fined, getting liens on

         14  the building, this is another area where there is a

         15  significant problem.  Would you speak to that and

         16  perhaps, I don't mean to put you on the spot here,

         17  but do we have any idea, proposals, do we have a

         18  problem right now from when, I forget the exact

         19  process, the notice, et cetera, then you give

         20  somebody a fine for not putting the trash out

         21  correctly, taking that through the court, getting

         22  this person fined and then collecting the fine,

         23  could you, is that a smooth process?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         25  Unfortunately, it is not a smooth process.  And what

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  happens is, oftentimes it is years and decades

          3  before those fines are actually collected.  So as

          4  far as having an immediate impact on trying to

          5  change behavior and making people more responsible

          6  for their properties, it oftentimes doesn't happen

          7  until very, very late in the process.  So as far as

          8  having an immediate impact, which is what we are

          9  trying to do with these fines and violations, it

         10  oftentimes does not have that impact.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And so do you

         12  know if the Administration is looking towards how to

         13  change that situation? Are we going to have an

         14  impact?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         16  I think it is- -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  With term

         18  limits impact is important around here.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         20  I think, obviously, I think it is important, and I

         21  think the Administration needs to sit down with the

         22  Council and see what kind of legislation might be

         23  appropriate to move that forward.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         25  thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

          3  Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

          5  very much, Madam Chair.  First, I want to commend

          6  you for your leadership on this concern about

          7  rodents in our City and taking up the resolution as

          8  well as the bill that is before us today.  And I

          9  also want to take a moment to commend my colleague,

         10  Phil Reed, for his interest in this matter as well.

         11  And needless to say, Dr. Gibson, I want to commend

         12  you for your continued vigilance with regard to this

         13  Pest Control need that we have in our City and for

         14  your presentation today.

         15                 I have a few quick questions.  With

         16  regard to the World Trade Center, let me just

         17  understand, I want to thank you for, you apparently

         18  have taken some initiative on your own to do some

         19  abatement and what not in that area.  But the

         20  residents in that area were, have you made any

         21  outreach to them in some way or another to let them

         22  know that services were available?  Because I get

         23  the sense that folks, there is a gap there, a

         24  communication gap there.  Did you get any kind of

         25  communication from people in terms of what was
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          2  happening in their homes?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Well,

          4  the information I mentioned earlier as far as the

          5  literature that we do pass out, our inspectors do

          6  actually take the literature with them and pass it

          7  out while they are doing inspections.  So that is

          8  part of the way we communicate.  There had been some

          9  spots still on the radio and also posters that are

         10  put up in particular areas that we have identified

         11  as problematic.  For instance, if there is a park

         12  where people are feeding pigeons, we actually have

         13  folks actually distribute flyers in those parks for

         14  instance.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  But I'm

         16  talking more or less in the World Trade Center area,

         17  residents down in that area. Did you take any

         18  special outreach to residents?  Because it seems as

         19  if you focused primarily in sort of a commercial

         20  kind of sector.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

         22  Right.  We have not had an extensive outreach

         23  campaign to the residents in the area, no.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you think

         25  it would be helpful considering that there have been
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          2  some complaints, at least,- -

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          4  Absolutely.  You know, I understand that Council

          5  Member Gerson, we spoke briefly before this, and I

          6  know that his folks are having problems.  So

          7  absolutely I think that would be useful.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Okay, good.

          9  The rat- borne diseases, have you considered the

         10  possibility that considering the numbers of rodents

         11  that became visible and apparent down in that area,

         12  that there needs to be some sort of testing to see

         13  if any kind of diseases resulted from that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         15  actually it is something we do think is important.

         16  We want to, not only test for the presence of

         17  pathogens in the animals, but we also want to be

         18  able to better quantitatively determine whether our

         19  innovations are having an impact.  Anecdotally we

         20  know that they are because the reports are down,

         21  basically, when we placed bait stations we can

         22  determine whether or not if there are rats there,

         23  basically by whether or not the bait is being eaten.

         24                 So we can get indirect evidence that

         25  the populations are decreasing in certain areas.

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  But we do want to be a little bit more scientific

          3  about it, rather than sort of having to estimate.

          4  And so we are looking at doing population surveys at

          5  some point in the future.  We have actually

          6  initiated a small study earlier this year with the

          7  CDC to look at that, to do a quantitative

          8  assessment, a population survey that looked at the

          9  populations before an intervention, and we are going

         10  to be doing those surveys after interventions for

         11  instance.  And we have also looked at the presence

         12  of pathogens, and vector parasites on the rats, such

         13  as fleas and ticks that might be vectors for

         14  disease.  And that is something that we plan to

         15  continue to look for.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  As you

         17  recall, we were very concerned about setting

         18  protocols of the type that you are now suggesting,

         19  are about to be implemented.  I'm wondering,

         20  however, just to get to the World Trade Center, have

         21  you analyzed any of the carcasses to determine

         22  whether or not they have rat- borne diseases?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  We

         24  have not analyzed the carcasses, but again, we did

         25  do a small survey in the area, actually, in the City
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          2  Hall area.  And we, basically, are still waiting the

          3  full results of that, and we did, again, look at

          4  multiple, we basically did blood samples.  We took

          5  blood samples, we took blood samples from the

          6  animals to see what pathogens were present in their

          7  blood.  And we should have that analysis sometime in

          8  the not too distant future.

          9                 Again, we have been working with CDC,

         10  they are actually doing the testing, the laboratory

         11  testing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you,

         13  I'm glad to hear that.

         14                 Now this is, I guess, a process that

         15  you are going to take beyond the World Trade Center

         16  area and begin to use it in terms of the City, in

         17  general.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         19  basically, the World Trade Center was an opportunity

         20  for us to sort of use the knowledge and expertise

         21  that we have been gathering as a part of the CDC

         22  grant that we awarded in Bushwick.  The lessons we

         23  learned in the preparation for that project, we were

         24  able to apply to the World Trade Center.  And much

         25  of this is state- of- the- art, and we are hoping to
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          2  actually apply both the lessons we have learned from

          3  the World Trade Center and also what is ongoing in

          4  Bushwick to other pilot projects.  One of which is

          5  in Council Member Reed's district, and also one that

          6  is going to be in Harlem, in your district, the

          7  small area that we are looking at, expanding this

          8  to, as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well, I

         10  welcome that, and I would like to be aware of when

         11  it begins to unfold and to be involved in some of

         12  the discussions about it.  And I am, again, very

         13  pleased that you have begun to look at this in a

         14  very serious way.  I guess the, I wonder if the

         15  recent findings of the disease in some individuals

         16  had anything to do with triggering this new

         17  approach?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  It is

         19  something that obviously we are very concerned with.

         20    The Commissioner, Commissioner Frieden is very

         21  concerned about these issues, and we recognize it as

         22  something that it is better to know, particularly in

         23  light of the World Trade Center, in particularly in

         24  light of the Anthrax situation that occurred

         25  earlier, late last year.
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          2                 Basically, it got started because

          3  there was some concern about BT events in certain

          4  species, and we were in discussions with the Center

          5  for Disease Control to actually set up the study.

          6  And they are actually very interested in doing a

          7  more extensive study at some point in the future,

          8  funding permitting.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  The Office

         10  of Emergency Management is the coordinating arm, and

         11  I know that prior to 9/11 there was a scheduling,

         12  somewhat of a schedule of meetings of all the

         13  related agencies to coordinate their activities with

         14  regard to rodent control.

         15                 And I imagine that since 9/11 there

         16  had to be a change in that.  Has OEM resumed its

         17  regularized meetings with regard to the Task Force?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         19  the meetings were held weekly, particularly in the

         20  height of the season during the summer.  Obviously,

         21  9/11, as you suggested, interrupted that schedule,

         22  and things were put off as far as the Task Force

         23  meeting. But they have resumed and they are meeting

         24  less frequently.  It's approximately every three

         25  weeks at this point.  But as the season progresses,
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          2  we will be meeting more frequently.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  One final

          4  question, we had a warm winter, and my understanding

          5  is that the warm weather is a good breeding

          6  opportunity.  And just my own observations moving

          7  around the neighborhood and the kind of being the

          8  sort of designated rats person, the kind of concerns

          9  that have come to me as a result of the work that we

         10  have done.  It seems as if we have a growing

         11  population, a larger population than maybe, am I,

         12  what is your - -

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No,

         14  absolutely the weather does an impact on the

         15  population.  If there is a mild winter, basically

         16  there is more food available.  It's an easier

         17  environment for the rats to survive in.  Certainly,

         18  they would be more likely to survive the winter, and

         19  then be available for breeding.  So certainly that

         20  could be an impact in certain communities for

         21  increasing the rodent population, absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So you have,

         23  your people have observed that there is a slight, an

         24  increase in visibility, even by the way, I have

         25  noticed as a public transportation user, on the
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          2  subways that they are more visible.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

          4  there is no question about it.  In certain areas

          5  where there are serious infestations, they may be

          6  more visible than otherwise they might be,

          7  certainly, if there was a harsh winter, absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Again, thank

          9  you very much for your testimony and the work that

         10  you have been doing over the years.  And I, again,

         11  want to thank the Chairwoman for, you know, picking

         12  up on this, and hopefully, you will continue to work

         13  with this and see how we can make a difference in

         14  the City working with Mr. Gibson and the Pest

         15  Control Services.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  And

         20  we have a couple of other Council members who have

         21  questions, and two other witnesses.  But before we

         22  do that, I just need to interrupt for a little bit

         23  of Committee housekeeping.  Council Member Perkins

         24  introduced a bill calling on this Committee to hold

         25  an oversight hearing on DOH's rat abatement efforts
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          2  in and around the World Trade Center site.  Since

          3  obviously that is what we are doing, I am going to

          4  call a vote to file the Resolution No. 13.  So if

          5  the Clerk could, please, call the role to file Reso.

          6  13.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at 4

         16  in the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         17  abstentions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         19  Council Member Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair, and thank you very much for your

         22  testimony.  I would like to shift gears for a

         23  moment, although, I commend you for the work that is

         24  being done at the World Trade Center, which is of

         25  great concern to all of us.  But I have to move on,
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          2  to another issue, an issue that, I'm not going to be

          3  too delicate about, only because I think it has to

          4  have an impact, particularly that we are coming into

          5  the summer months.  I would like to get onto the

          6  commercial areas and the problems that they raise,

          7  particularly in the areas where they are mostly

          8  restaurants.

          9                 I know that you probably work with

         10  Sanitation to some degree.  But what I do not

         11  understand, is that why are the commercial areas,

         12  many of them, have become absolute garbage dumps for

         13  communities?  And I'm really being hard on that

         14  because in many areas that is exactly what they have

         15  turned into.  And if they are in compliance with

         16  Sanitation laws and the Board of Health, I don't

         17  understand why the sidewalks have been contaminated

         18  with grease and oil that is absolutely non-

         19  removable, they smell, they are food for whatever

         20  comes through there, particularly rodents.  They are

         21  food for all other kind of creatures.  And the

         22  sidewalks stay that way. Now either that is due to

         23  improper containerization, either it's due to

         24  improper disposable bags that are used, or they are

         25  in complete violation, that just continues, goes on
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          2  and on and one.

          3                 Now this really cannot continue, with

          4  all due respect to the wonderful effort that you are

          5  doing, and it is obvious that you are doing that.

          6  But this is a growing problem, it's a growing

          7  problem throughout the City, it's not just a growing

          8  problem in one or two of the boroughs.

          9                 Now there is a big gap somewhere,

         10  because we are coming into the summer months, and I

         11  have to tell you residents are forced to live with

         12  garbage that is not of their own making.  The

         13  restaurants may get summonses and they pay them and

         14  they are right back again, committing the same awful

         15  violations.

         16                 Why does it continue like that?  And

         17  I'm not being naive in asking that question, but I

         18  would really be remiss if this was not directed in

         19  this hearing, because it is rodent problems, it

         20  creates that.  It creates disease problems, which

         21  brings me to the question, and I'm side hacking for

         22  a moment, but when the carcasses are having blood

         23  samples.  And I understand, I have been in health

         24  care and I understand the complexities of

         25  examinations and blood chemistry and what have you.
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          2  Why does it take so long to get it returned?

          3                 And you have asked, my colleague has

          4  asked that question.  Because I sat here thinking,

          5  if it takes so long and there is something to

          6  consider, it's a long time before there is treatment

          7  for that particular, perhaps, infectious disease.

          8  And I cannot separate what happens in the commercial

          9  areas, what happens any place else, whether it is in

         10  housing, whether it is in public housing, whether it

         11  is in multiple dwellings or whatever.  You know what

         12  it is, it's all part of the universal issue, it is

         13  part of the global picture.  And we cannot separate

         14  one from the other from the other, because it is

         15  like a set of dominoes, you knock one down, and it

         16  all begins to go.

         17                 And this City is absolutely infected

         18  with unbelievable violations, and they may pay them,

         19  and it's easier for them to pay them.  It seems to

         20  be a real hesitancy in prior Administrations to

         21  actually close down when they have presented such a

         22  terrible, terrible threat.  Every day we hear of

         23  food poisoning, every day.  The reason for that is

         24  that the restaurant is serving bad food, they don't

         25  have proper air conditioning, they have, they don't
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          2  wear proper gloves or hats.  And I can tell you, I

          3  went through the Health Academy when I was running

          4  an institution, just to see exactly what had to be

          5  done, what the chefs had to do and so on.  And what

          6  I learned about the fly, I wouldn't like to repeat

          7  anyplace else, and you know, they are all over the

          8  place.

          9                 So I'm really raising a big issue,

         10  but it needs some addressing, because it is an

         11  ongoing problem that doesn't seem to have a

         12  solution.  So either Sanitation and the Department

         13  of Health have to come together to absolutely

         14  rectify through legislation, which is what the

         15  Council is all about, because we work with every

         16  single agency, to do this.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         18  I agree with you.  And Council Member Reed said,

         19  it's, and I testified earlier too, that everyone has

         20  a responsibility, every individual, every business,

         21  everyone has a responsibility to make sure that they

         22  do what they need to do, to make sure that their

         23  garbage is contained properly so that there isn't

         24  food sources available to rodents.

         25                 You did bring very broad issue into
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          2  play, not just focused on rodent issues; it is a

          3  much bigger issue from an enforcement standpoint and

          4  an accountability standpoint.  But I wholeheartedly

          5  agree, as I indicated in the testimony.  We support

          6  the concept what Council Member Reed is putting

          7  forward with regards to making sure that the

          8  penalties are such that people have no other option

          9  but to adhere to the rules and regulations and the

         10  laws that are put forward by the City Council and by

         11  the Board of Health.

         12                 There is absolutely no question that

         13  many, many people violate those rules.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But he also

         15  raised another issue, it is one thing to have those

         16  laws, it is another thing to have an outreach

         17  program, but it is, how is that outreach program

         18  developed and who is part of it?  Because no matter

         19  what we say about the public, most of them do not

         20  understand what is going on or even realize what is

         21  happening.  It is our obligation to see that they

         22  are informed, it's government's obligations to do

         23  that. So an outreach program, as much as it may be

         24  there, in the growing commercial areas, the changing

         25  over of merchants and owners, and it is not removed
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          2  from the rodent problem because the rodent problem

          3  is very much a part of this issue.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  I

          5  mentioned the pilot project that we have going,

          6  ongoing in Bushwick.  And I just want to sort of

          7  give you a little bit more information about that

          8  project, and I think it sort of goes to the point of

          9  what you are talking about.  Basically, that project

         10  reaches out, the goals of that project reach out to

         11  95 percent of the population.  Basically, what we do

         12  is inspections of each and every property within

         13  that 48- block area, and we determine which areas

         14  are in violation, we reach out to those property

         15  owners and give them an option.  We say, either you

         16  come to this training, and we basically train them

         17  on what they can do to remove those violations from

         18  their property, including stoppage,

         19  containerization, all of those things.  And give

         20  them an opportunity to apply those lessons learned

         21  from that training, before we actually do our

         22  compliance inspection. Whereby, if those violations

         23  are still present, then we will go ahead and

         24  initiate the NOV process.  And be very aggressive

         25  and rigorous in making sure that they do comply, we
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          2  will go back on numerous occasions.

          3                 Unfortunately, the City is such that

          4  we cannot do that in every area, yet.  But we are

          5  hoping, certainly, that this pilot will be

          6  successful so that we can start applying the lessons

          7  we learn from this pilot throughout the City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  What kind of

          9  time frame have you given to this pilot program to

         10  determine its effectiveness?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  The

         12  first year we are looking at the exterior

         13  violations, primarily, and that is a year.  The

         14  second year, we are going to focus on interior

         15  violations.  This is a three- year grant, so

         16  basically a total of $750,000.  So by the end of the

         17  grant, we should have the technology that we, in

         18  place, that we anticipate.  For instance, we hope

         19  that there is going to be some kind of interactive

         20  web- based system, whereby, at some point, the

         21  community can actually interact with the web and

         22  follow their complaints.

         23                 The first stage is we are going to

         24  be, basically, allowing that information to be made

         25  available to Community Boards. So the Community
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          2  Boards can follow that information.  But again,

          3  hopefully, within three years, that will be up and

          4  running.  And not only do we want to apply it

          5  through the rest of the City, but the City see, and

          6  the whole reason why this was awarded, because they

          7  want this to be a demonstrated project,

          8  demonstration project for the rest of the country.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  What about a

         10  community establishing a very, very small boundary,

         11  without its being a pilot program, which just your

         12  working within that area?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         14  as I mentioned to Council Members Reed and Perkins,

         15  we are looking at smaller pilots.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I'm not giving

         17  up.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  We

         19  are looking at smaller pilots in other areas.  In

         20  fact, in many respects the World Trade Center was,

         21  again, the lessons we learned as preparation for

         22  that grant proposal that we had put together, we

         23  applied those, and we were able to be very

         24  successful and keeping track of what we did.  And

         25  actually focusing our resources on the areas that,
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          2  where it was needed, so that we could have the

          3  biggest impact.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, all

          5  right, thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

          7  Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you,

          9  again, for the second round.  I just want to, for

         10  the record, you know, as you may recall when Mayor

         11  Bloomberg ran for Mayor, he developed a blueprint in

         12  which he identified the positions that he was

         13  taking.  And amongst his positions that he took, was

         14  adopt the Perkins' Rat Report, are you familiar with

         15  that?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         17  I am.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  And so we

         19  just want to make sure that, you know, he is

         20  continuing.  You were part of the development of

         21  this report.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So I assume

         24  that you helped to advise him of the value of the

         25  recommendations.  And I just wanted to get a sense
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          2  as to whether or not he is actually pursuing this

          3  through the Health Department in terms of the

          4  recommendations that we have made.  And have you,

          5  can you give us some sense of that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

          7  many of the things that were in the report are

          8  certainly common sense, sound principles with regard

          9  to rodent control.  And, again, one of the things

         10  that we are hoping to do with this pilot, which we

         11  are hoping to take Citywide at the end of this

         12  pilot, basically, in two and a half more years, is

         13  to implement those things.  And many of those things

         14  are actually outlined in your report.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Did you

         16  find, without going through the whole list of

         17  recommendations, areas where you would have some

         18  difficulty that you can recall, or should I just

         19  sort of?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No, I

         21  do not recall areas that we had serious

         22  disagreements on.  I think, again, I think that was,

         23  that report was fundamentally sound, it certainly

         24  was ambitious with regards to rodent control issues

         25  in the City. And I certainly hope that within my
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          2  five- year time frame of my tenure here, that we

          3  reach the goal, incorporate many of the things that

          4  you had in your report, and really bring this

          5  program to where it should be, the pinnacle Pest

          6  Control Program in the country.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well one of

          8  those that I'm happy to hear you testify to today

          9  was Intro. No. 1496, which was a resolution calling

         10  upon the Department of Health to test rat carcasses

         11  for leptospirosis and other rat- borne diseases.  So

         12  I'm glad that you are working with CDC to make that

         13  happen.

         14                 Another one of the ones that we were

         15  very, very concerned about had to do with Local Law

         16  to amend Administrative Code of the City of New York

         17  requiring plastic bags.  The whole question of

         18  containerization, recognizing that the plastic bags

         19  are basically a banquet opportunity for rats,

         20  because they get into them and they can eat.

         21                 How have you - -

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  I

         23  think in one of the previous testimonies that I had,

         24  I think that in areas where there are rodent

         25  problems, where there are rodent infestations,
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          2  certainly plastic bags are no barrier to rodents,

          3  and it provides, as you said, a banquet for the

          4  rats.  I think that many parts of the City, and

          5  because New York is a very complex city and you have

          6  got different kinds of housing stock and all of the,

          7  I think you have got to look at a sort of a

          8  multitude type of solutions for this.  I know many

          9  sidewalks are very narrow, in many cases, whereby,

         10  it would be very difficult to have a large number of

         11  trash cans because that would impede people walking.

         12    So I think you have got to be, you have to have a

         13  certain amount of flexibility in any kind of

         14  prescriptions for solving this.  But certainly the

         15  whole concept of containerization is the key to

         16  solving this problem in New York City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So give me

         18  some ideas of what you are doing, if we cannot use

         19  the garbage can, I know we have to use some sort of

         20  rat- proof containerization, what are you doing in

         21  that vein?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  In

         23  many respects there are already many laws in the

         24  books that are already, sort of like deal with this

         25  issue.  For instance, I'm not sure of the specifics,
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          2  perhaps, Sanitation could come up and talk about

          3  that. But many buildings are required to provide

          4  rodent- roofed rooms, so that basically they can

          5  stir their garbage until it is needed to go out to

          6  be put on the street.

          7                 So basically, if you got food,

          8  constantly there, 24/7, allowing the rats to

          9  basically have food whenever they want food, then

         10  you are going to have a serious infestation.  If you

         11  have got food that is only available for a limited

         12  number of hours, your population is going to be much

         13  smaller.  So if you have a way to store that

         14  garbage, not necessarily in garbage cans on the

         15  street, but basically, if there is a room that is

         16  rodent- proof. And there are ways to do that, in a

         17  basement, for instance, whereby the garbage can be

         18  stored and then brought up to the surface for a

         19  limited period of time, that is one way to do it, as

         20  well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Are we

         22  campaigning to get that to be implemented as widely

         23  as possible?  I mean, is there an effort to inform

         24  owners that that is a way to go to help combat this

         25  pest problem?

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  It

          3  certainly is part of our message to the community,

          4  to the property owners, for instance, in the

          5  Bushwick Project that I mentioned.  Stoppage is a

          6  huge part of what we are teaching the folks to do to

          7  make sure that rats cannot enter their homes, enter

          8  their basements.  We basically teach them techniques

          9  that they can prevent rats from getting into their

         10  properties.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  One final

         12  local law that we had recommended was one related to

         13  abating rats as a requirement for earth work

         14  permits.  Where are we at with that idea?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  I

         16  think the Administration has expressed strong

         17  support for that legislation, and I'm not sure where

         18  it is in the City Council.  We certainly require any

         19  kind of contractors for City contracts to provide

         20  that service, and we certainly encourage that

         21  service to be provided by private construction

         22  folks, as well.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  All right,

         24  thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member
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          2  Reed, oh, you didn't want to.  Council Member

          3  Clarke, I'm sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair. Good afternoon.  This has been a quite

          6  interesting and a quite important hearing today.  I

          7  have a couple of concerns and a couple of questions

          8  for you.

          9                 In just hearing your testimony, it

         10  seems as though there has been some collaboration on

         11  the part of your Office and Sanitation.  And I guess

         12  just following along some of the lines of Council

         13  Member Sears, what I am finding, in particular, with

         14  my district, which has a huge immigrant population,

         15  is that the translation of the regulations around

         16  Sanitation and Pest Control is not really sinking

         17  in.  That we don't have a sustained education effort

         18  that enables us to, really get folks on board as a

         19  way of life.

         20                 And I want to recommend that,

         21  perhaps, as a cost saving measure, that is probably

         22  going to be one of the ways we would have to go, be

         23  it through working through local community,

         24  Community Boards, along with Sanitation, Department

         25  of Health. Because I'm finding particularly in my
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          2  community that, you know, people are just unaware or

          3  the turnover in the population is so frequent, that

          4  we are having a hard time getting a grip on this

          5  situation.  As a matter of fact, we are going to be

          6  doing a lot of that work this summer in anticipation

          7  of what we see as an increase in rodents.

          8                 My question to you, because you are

          9  doing this pilot project in Bushwick, is, are you

         10  seeing a decline in rodents and is that because of

         11  their untimely demise, or are they running to other

         12  areas?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Well

         14  let me say a couple of things.  One of the reasons

         15  why Bushwick was selected was because they did have

         16  a very, number one, a significant rodent problem.

         17  Secondly, they had a community that was very active

         18  in this issue, and they were very interested in

         19  having us come in, so we wanted to make sure that we

         20  have a willing audience and a participatory audience

         21  to work with us on this.  In fact, we have

         22  contracted with two community- based organizations

         23  in Bushwick to work with us.  One of which is

         24  primarily Hispanic, has Hispanic constituency.  All

         25  of our literature is translated into multiple
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          2  languages, certainly, Spanish, but mostly the other

          3  posters and literature that I mentioned, has been

          4  translated into several other languages, Chinese,

          5  Korean, French, a number of other languages as well.

          6    So we recognize that the immigrant communities are

          7  an important audience for these messages, and so we

          8  certainly have responded appropriately for that.

          9                 We certainly recognize that we

         10  certainly can do better and we need to do better in

         11  reaching those residences, and we certainly will

         12  continue to try to do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  My question

         14  was, are those rats actually dying, or going to

         15  other areas?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  The

         17  situation in Bushwick is interesting because we

         18  applied for that grant and we were awarded that

         19  grant in September, right before 9/11, and we had

         20  actually gotten a lot of complaints prior to that.

         21  So we did not ignore the community, even though we

         22  selected this community to participate with us in

         23  the grants.  So we actually put a lot of services

         24  into the community.

         25                 And the answer to the question is,
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          2  yes, we did. There has been a significant impact

          3  already.  And if you talk to the residents of

          4  Bushwick, they will say that to you, that there has

          5  been an impact.

          6                 So in many respects our baseline has

          7  been raised because of our efforts prior to,

          8  beginning the grant.  But there has certainly been

          9  an impact.  Our educational efforts have resulted in

         10  the residents, themselves, and the property owners

         11  purchasing proper containers.  And basically many of

         12  the worst infested streets, I have walked by,

         13  personally, and they are no where near what they

         14  used to be.  Certainly, they are not where they

         15  should be, but there certainly have been significant

         16  improvements, and again, the residents there will

         17  tell you that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:   I guess my

         19  question is, when you are able to go in and do this

         20  sort of intensive work in one area, are we simply

         21  chasing the rodents to the next area, or are we

         22  getting rid of them?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  No,

         24  we are getting rid of them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  For good.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  We

          3  are getting rid of them.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

          7  Reed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you.  I'm

          9  not sure this is a question as much as a statement,

         10  but we are anxious to, and I think I have heard from

         11  you that you are, as well, move this bill Intro. 90,

         12  I believe, forward.  And in speaking with the Chair,

         13  I think this Committee would be looking to vote on

         14  this at our next Committee hearing, without any

         15  further hearings.  We may be having a hearing on

         16  something, but we will use that as an opportunity to

         17  vote on this.  So I would just encourage the

         18  Administration to let's resolve whatever this, it's

         19  technical on top of technical, I don't quite

         20  understand it, myself, so I'm going to keep a smile

         21  on my face.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Yes,

         23  we will continue to work with you on that,

         24  absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Let's just get
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          2  it done so next week, or in two weeks when we have a

          3  Committee hearing we can move forward with this.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          5  Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:

          9  You're welcome.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         11  want to thank you, one, for your overall work on the

         12  issue of rodents and rats in the City.  It certainly

         13  sounds, to hear the comments, particularly from

         14  Council Member Perkins, it certainly sounds, which,

         15  you know, our in- house expert, certainly sounds

         16  like a great deal of progress has been made since

         17  the Select Committee was formed and did its

         18  oversight.  So you and the Commissioner and the

         19  entire Department should be credited for that.

         20                 And I also want to say it seems like

         21  you all were, you know, very quick to respond

         22  Downtown to make sure that, you know, was a problem

         23  did not become an overwhelming problem that might

         24  have taken, you know, many, many months to get back

         25  under hand.  And you responded quickly to what you
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          2  saw, you know, as a developing infestation and made

          3  sure that it did not get further out of hand.

          4                 I do want to follow- up with you

          5  around some of the general issues relating to the

          6  hotline, around the accessibility issues, language

          7  issues, and particularly as it relates to Chinatown,

          8  so we will be back in touch on that.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I just want

         11  to also say, we will be anxious, as the Council

         12  member said, to follow- up on Intro. 90.  There may

         13  be issues relating to, you know, the Code that we

         14  have to try to separate from this and engage in a

         15  longer- term effort of trying to update that part.

         16  But I would hope that it would be possible to, you

         17  know, do this and then engage in that, you know,

         18  separately into tiers, you know, so then when we do

         19  update it, we just would not take out the changes

         20  that we made in Intro. 90.

         21                 But I want to thank you, and the many

         22  other City agencies that were here listening to the

         23  testimony.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GIBSON:  Okay,

         25  thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  And

          3  next we are going to hear from George Goodwill.

          4                 MR. GOODWILL:  Good afternoon.  My

          5  name is George Goodwill, Chair of Community Planning

          6  Board #9, and my district covers from the north side

          7  of 110th Street to the south side of 155th Street

          8  from the Hudson River over to Saint Nicholas and

          9  higher up over to Edgecomb Avenue.

         10                 I just want to say I welcome the

         11  chance to be here to talk about this issue that is

         12  becoming quite a problem for my community, and

         13  probably the entire Harlem community.  And so I also

         14  want to thank Councilman Perkins, because I had

         15  worked with him, when he conducted the Rat Summit

         16  and that wonderful meeting at Columbia University,

         17  where I got, certainly, a good education about rats

         18  and its effects and, you know, the whole gamut was

         19  talked about.  And certainly there was lots of

         20  community participation. And so we all have more of

         21  an awareness of the issue, and more of an awareness

         22  how this could impact, not just on our quality- of

         23  life, but certainly cause serious problems for the

         24  health of our community.

         25                 I'm happy to say, and I want to
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          2  publicly thank my District Manager, who took the

          3  initiative when the Board had within a two- week

          4  period, we got over eight complaints about rats in

          5  the community.  And so we reached out to the

          6  community, but more importantly we have had at least

          7  two community meetings with various agencies, the

          8  Department of Health, Sanitation, Parks, Riverbank

          9  State Park, HPD, the Department of Environmental

         10  Protection, NYC Housing Authority, and of course,

         11  one of our major vendors, Fairway Supermarket.  And

         12  so out of those sessions we have brought all of

         13  these people to the table, and it certainly is

         14  making a difference for our community, because it is

         15  certainly indicates we are being very proactive

         16  about it.  But it is also in the case of willingness

         17  of all these agencies to address it and be very

         18  honest about that it is, in fact, a problem.

         19                 In these meetings what I see as a

         20  real major problem, and Councilman Jackson had a

         21  Town Meeting at the Convent Avenue Baptist Church

         22  last week, and this certainly was on the minds of

         23  many of our community residents.  And I find

         24  enforcement is a real big issue, because you can

         25  have all the educational materials out there, you
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          2  can have all the talks about this issue, but if you

          3  don't have enforcement, all of that is for naught.

          4  And in my community, enforcement is a very, very big

          5  issue.  And at that Town Meeting that Councilman

          6  Jackson addressed this issue or attempted to address

          7  this issue, the Sanitation Department made it very

          8  clear that they did not have personnel that would do

          9  this enforcement.

         10                 The other thing I see as a major

         11  problem is the lack of coordination between the

         12  Department of Health and the Sanitation Department

         13  and all other Department that could make a

         14  difference. And I think a better job has got to be

         15  done about that type of coordination that not only

         16  will talk about the problem, but will come up with

         17  strategies to address and bring resolutions to that

         18  problem.

         19                 The education needs to be more direct

         20  and grassroots.  Sending flyers to a Board office or

         21  any of the offices of community involvement is not

         22  enough.  People do, occasionally, come by our office

         23  and pick up the flyers.  When we do our mailings for

         24  our meetings, we do include these flyers.  But it

         25  has to be something more than that, where
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          2  representatives are talking, interacting with the

          3  community so that they know that they are serious

          4  about what they are doing, and that they are in

          5  fact, there to help.

          6                 So Board #9 has taken a very

          7  proactive position in this.  I thank all of the

          8  agencies who responded to our invitation to these

          9  Town meetings.  We are looking forward to more Town

         10  meetings.  We want everyone to recognize that my

         11  particular district has a real problem, not problem,

         12  but issues in terms of our facilities like the

         13  sewage plant, the Marine Transfer Plant, and of

         14  course, the park, the Riverbank State Park where

         15  they have also been very receptive.

         16                 I have a flyer here both in English

         17  and Spanish, starting tomorrow, the 19th through

         18  Friday, the 21st, we are going have errors of rat

         19  baiting.  We have communicated this to all of the

         20  agencies within our district.  We have also had our

         21  schools, both District #5 and District #6, to give

         22  them an awareness of what we are doing and to really

         23  ask for their involvement in stepping up to the

         24  plate and having everyone take responsibility, with

         25  the landlords, with the homeowners, with everyone.
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          2                 But again, I want to finally say,

          3  unless we can seriously address enforcement issues,

          4  we are not going to get very far.

          5                 And thank you for having me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  And

          7  some of those unfortunate matters, as we kind of

          8  referenced as it related to Intro. 90, we are going

          9  to be having ongoing conversations with the

         10  Department about, you know, issues relating to

         11  Intro. 90 and other connected issues.  And

         12  obviously, I think enforcement will be part of those

         13  discussions, so we will keep you up- to- date on

         14  those.

         15                 MR. GOODWILL:  Okay, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         17  Ronald Meringold, is Ronald here?  Okay, those are

         18  the only two additional witnesses that I had who

         19  were scheduled to testify.  If there isn't anybody

         20  else, then this hearing is adjourned.  Thank you.

         21                 (Hearing concluded 3:01 p.m.)
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